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VISION STATEMENT

« We aim at maintaining the confidence of our valued customers by fulfilling their
needs, demands and stipulations.

= We will achieve consistent financial performance which creates value for the
shareholders.

« Our organization encourages employee participation that also helps us to achieve
quality results.

« We believe in innovative technology applications to achieve continuous
improvement and ability to avail the required opportunities.

« We intend to involve all employees in the development and implementation of
quality systems, which will be reviewed periodically to ensure their effectiveness.

+ We aim to improve the profitability of our company through improved efficiency
and cost controls.

« We will take effective measures so as to protect the environment and contribute
towards the economic strength of the country and function as a good corporate
citizen.

MISSION STATEMENT

We aim to strive for market leadership, to maintain full confidence of our customers,
ensure continuous improvement in profitability and at maintenance of industry
standards by striving for quality products and introduction of innovative gquality
applications.
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

The Board is comprised of experienced and accomplished leaders, each contributing valuable
expertise from diverse corporate sectors. The Board plays a pivotal role in shaping key policies
and strategies that drive efficient and effective management of the Company. It remains firmly
committed to fostering innovation and modernization within the organization. Our governance
framework is fully aligned with all applicable laws and regulations, with clear definitions of
obligations, rights, responsibilities, and duties.

The Board is fully aligned with the Company's vision, mission, and values, and actively upholds
them. We regularly review and refine our mission and vision statements to ensure their
relevance. Additionally, we maintain a deep understanding of our stakeholders, customers,
employees, vendors, and society at large, all of whom we serve. The Board also provides
strategic direction for the Company’s growth over the next three to five years, setting annual
goals and performance targets for management across all key areas.

The Board has diligently fulfilled its responsibilities, conducting thorough reviews, discussions,
and approvals of business strategies, corporate objectives, budgets, financial statements, and
other key reports. Oversight is continuously reinforced through presentations from management
and auditors. The Board remains vigilant in monitoring critical areas, including product quality
standards, promoting sustainable growth, fostering diversity, upholding ethical practices, and
developing skilled talent to drive progress and excellence.

In conclusion, we sincerely thank you for your continued support and trust in the Board as we
guide the Company toward new heights of corporate excellence in the years ahead.

wfieef

Chairman

Faisalabad:
September 26, 2024
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Directors of the Company takes pleasure in presenting before you 39™ directors’ report of the
Company, comprising of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 along with
Auditors’ Report thereon and other required information under Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the Companies Act 2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
REVENUE 1,809,851 1,577,693
COST OF SALES (1,580,962) (1,395,597)
GROSS PROFIT 228,889 182,096
DISTRIBUTION COST (4,160) (6,047)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (39,793) (35,742)
OTHER EXPENSES (13,915) (18,931)
OTHER INCOME 13,169 24,141
FINANCE COST (1,063) (1,192)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION AND LEVY 183,127 144,325
LEVY (392) (621)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 182,735 143,704
TAXATION (68,022) (41,329)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 114,713 102,375
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 8.71 7.77

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company achieved a commendable performance during the financial year ended June 30, 2024, with a
profit after taxation of Rupees 114.713 million, reflecting a notable increase from the previous year's profit
of Rupees 102.375 million. This represents a growth of approximately 12%, indicating a positive trend in
profitability. The Company anticipates that this upward momentum will continue, aiding in the reduction of
accumulated losses and improving the current ratio. These favorable developments will strengthen the
Company’s growth capacity and enable further expansion of its production facilities.

The spinning sector remains the backbone of Pakistan's textile industry, which is crucial to the nation’s
economic development. However, the textile industry faced significant challenges during the financial year.
Factors such as high energy costs, increasing production expenses, political instability, inconsistent
economic policies, and high mark-up rates contributed to the industry's overall decline in performance.
These issues hampered the sector's ability to compete in international markets and meet export targets.
Despite ongoing modernization efforts, the industry struggled to regain its previous growth momentum. To
recover and remain competitive, the textile sector requires well-crafted strategic initiatives and stronger
support.
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ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company ensures safe working conditions, minimizing risks to the health of both employees and the
public. To protect our workforce, the Company adheres to established safety protocols and social
guidelines. Regular awareness sessions and drills are conducted to keep employees informed and prepared,
ensuring compliance with the latest safety standards.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company reinforced its commitment to corporate social responsibility by promoting environmental
sustainability through tree plantation initiatives and energy-efficient practices. We prioritized employee
health with vaccination programs and strict adherence to safety protocols. Our community engagement
efforts included support for education and disaster relief initiatives, while we continued to uphold ethical
business practices, fostering a diverse and inclusive workplace.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between
the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

IMPACT OF COMPANY'S BUSINESS ON ENVIRONMENT
Your company strives to follow best practices such as paper less environment and conserving energy.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and ligquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the financial performance. Risk management is carried out by the Company’s risk manager under
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as
well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The directors of the Company have a profound understanding of its operations and are actively working to
improve overall performance. Their focus is on implementing stringent cost control measures and
minimizing internal expenses to enhance profitability. Throughout the year, the Company has executed
well-planned strategies aimed at generating profits and reducing accumulated losses. Given the current
economic conditions, we foresee potential challenges that may impact revenue in the textile sector in the
near future.

DIVIDEND

Since the Company has accumulated losses, therefore, the directors have not recommended any dividend
for the year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended June 30, 2024 was Rupees 8.71 (2023:
Rupees 7.77)

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
Key operating and financial data for last six years in summarized form is annexed.
EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The auditors Messrs Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants, retires and being eligible, has offered
themselves for their re-appointment. The Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has recommended their
re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the next financial year ending 30 June 2025.

ﬁ=
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2024 is annexed.
Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

The "Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019" is annexed.
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The directors are pleased to report that:

a)

b)
c)

d)
€)

f)
g)

h)

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

There is no significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

All transactions with related parties have been executed at arm’s length and have been disclosed in
the financial statements under relevant notes.

The Company has a policy in place that ensures transparent procedures for fixing the remuneration
of Directors and no single Director is involved in determining his own remuneration. For Information
on remuneration of Directors and CEQ, please refer note 28 to the financial statements.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors as at June 30, 2024 consist of:

Total number of directors as per gender diversity:
a. Male: 06

b. Female: 01

Composition:

a) Independent Director: 02 as named hereunder:

Mr. Usman Mahmood
Mrs. Saira Affan

b) Other Non-executive Directors: 03 as named hereunder:

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf
Mr. Muhammad Amman Adil
Mr. Qaiser Nasir

¢) Executive Directors: 02 as named hereunder:

Mr. Muhammad Igbal, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Zeeshan Saeed, Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS
During the year under review five meetings were held and number of meetings attended by each director

is as follows:
Name of Directors Number of meetings attended
Mr. Muhammad Ashraf 5

Mr. Muhammad Igbal

Mr. Zeeshan Saeed

Mr. Usman Mahmood

Mrs. Saira Affan

Mr. Muhammad Amman Adil

Mr. Qaiser Nasir
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year, with the following attendance:

L 5 By [y W B |

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended
Mr. Usman Mahmood 4
Mr. Muhammad Amman Adil 4
Mr. Muhammad Ashraf 4

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

One meeting of the HR & Remuneration Committee was held during the year, with the following
attendance:

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended
Mrs. Saira Affan 1
Mr. Qaiser Nasir 1
Mr. Muhammad Igbal 1

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
One meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held during the year, with the following attendance:

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended
Mr. Muhammad Igbal 1
Mr. Muhammad Ashraf 1
Mr. Usman Mahmood 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year, with the following attendance:

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended
Mr. Muhammad Ashraf 1
Mr. Usman Mahmood 1
Mrs. Saira Affan 1
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DIRECTOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Board of Directors has devised the policy for the determination of remuneration. Following are its
salient features.

a) The Company will not pay any remuneration to its Non-Executive Directors except as meeting fee
for attending the Board and its committee meetings;

b) The remuneration of directors and meeting fee shall be determined and approved by the Board of
Directors. Remuneration package is designed to attract suitable candidate and talent on the Board;

¢) No single Director is involved in determining his own remuneration

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL AND FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Board of Directors has established an effective system of Internal and Financial Controls that ensure:

a) Effective and efficient conduct of operations;

b) Safeguarding company assets;

c) Compliance with applicable Laws and Regulation; and
d} Reliable Financial Reporting

Internal audit function of the Company regularly appraises and monitors the implementation of Standard
Operating Procedures and respective financial controls.

Internal audit reports are presented to the Audit Committee, as per internal audit plan. Accordingly, the
Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the internal control framework and financial statement in its
meetings.

ANNUAL BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board views performance assessment as a crucial element of good governance, offering valuable
feedback from Directors regarding the Board's effectiveness in fulfilling its roles and responsibilities. To
facilitate this, the Board developed in-house questionnaires based on emerging best practices to evaluate
the performance of the Board as a whole, its committees, and individual members. The Company Secretary
presents a summarized report for the Board's annual discussion and review.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We would like to take this opportunity to express our heartfelt appreciation to the dedicated employees of
the Company, whose hard work and unwavering commitment have been vital to our success. We also
extend our sincere gratitude to our esteemed shareholders and lenders for their invaluable support and
cooperation.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Wh -

Faisalabad: Director Chief Exeéutive Officer
September 26, 2024
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
Name of Company: Arctic Textile Mills Limited
Year Ending: 30 June 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: -

1. The total number of directors are seven as per following:
a. Male: Six
b. Female: One

2, The composition of the Board of Directors (“the Board") is as follows:

Category Name

Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Igbal
Mr. Zeeshan Saeed

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Ashraf

Mr. Muhammad Amman Adil

Mr. Qaiser Masir
Independent Directors Mr. Usman Mahmood

Mrs, Saira Affan (female)

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
Board/shareholders as empowerad by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board is fully compliant with Rule 19 of the Regulations regarding Directors' training program for the
directors and heads of department of the Company.

10.  The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

11.  Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of
the Board;

ﬁ=
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12.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below;

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Usman Mahmood (Chairman)

Mr. Muhammad Amman Adil (Member)

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf (Member)
b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Mrs. Saira Affan {Chairperson)

Mr. Qaiser Masir (Member)

Mr. Muhammad Igbal {Member)
c) MNomination Committee

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf {Chairman)

Mr. Usman Mahmood {Member)

Mrs. Saira Affan {(Member)
d) Risk Management Committee

Mr. Muhammad Igbal (Chairman)

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf (Member)

Mr. Usman Mahmood (Mermber)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committees for compliance;

14,  The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee: Four meetings during the financial year ended 30 June 2024
b)Y HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended 30 June 2024
c) Nomination Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended 30 June 2024
d) Risk Management Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended 30 June 2024
15.  The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

16.  The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close
relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18.  We confirm that all other requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; except for the independent directors in which fraction is not rounded up as one
because the fraction (0.33) was less than 0.5.

Muhammad Igbal
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad Ashraf
Chairman
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= F5 Tower, O Garda
Riaz Ahmad & Company Enst ol Road, Fcalabad, Pkiston
Chartered Accountants T:+92 (41) 54880 81, 5488082
‘ racafsd@racopk.com
W, rcoph. Com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Arctic Textile Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Arctic Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2024 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inguiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2024,

/‘i ﬁ‘ﬂ“ﬂ—l{ £ Co,
AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Faisalabad
Date: 26 September 2024
UDIN: CR20241018456Xm8Qz02

A member of

Nexia

Intarnaticnal
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Riaz Ahmad & Company Eat Canci Road, Faibad, Pacatan
Chartered Accountants To+02 [41) 548 8081, 548 B0 82
' racofsdiracopk.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Arctic Textile Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Arctic Textile Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the Information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2024 and of the profit, other
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finandial Staternents section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities In accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A I'I'illl'ﬂhl: of

Nexia

nternational
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Following is the key audit matter:

Sr.
No.

Key audit matter

Annual Report 2024

'How the matter was addressed in our |
audit

'1. | Revenue recognition

The Company recognized net
revenue of Rupees 1,809.851
million for the year ended 30 June
2024.

We identified recognition of
| revenue as a key audit matter
; because revenue is one of the key
i performance indicators of the
' Company and gives rise to an
: inherent risk that revenue could
! be subject toc misstatement to
meet expectations or targets.

For further information, refer to
the following:

- Material accounting
policy informaticn,
Revenue from contracts
with customers (Note
2.17 to the financial
statements).

- Revenue from contracts
with customers (Note
18 to the financial |
statements).

to:

Our procedures included, but were not limited

We obtained an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of revenue
and testing the design, implementation

and operating effectiveness of key
Internal controls owver recording of
revenue.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the vyear
with sales orders, sales invoices, delivery
documents and other relevant underlying
documents.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the year-
end with the sales orders, sales (nvoices,
delivery documents and other relevant |
underlying documentation to assess if the
related revenue was recorded in the
appropriate accounting period.

We assessed whether the accounting
policies for revenue recognition complies
with the requirements of IFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,

We also considered the appropriateness
of disclosures in the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and

our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and wusing the going concern basis of accounting unless management
gither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
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cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with

the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980). -

The engagement partner on the audit resulting In this independent auditor's report is Liagat
Ali Panwar,

y ey ¢ co.

R AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Faisalabad

Date: 26 September 2024

UDIN: AR202410184KFdCYx903
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 18 1,809,851 1,577,693
COST OF SALES 19 (1,580,962)  (1,395,597)
GROSS PROFIT 228,889 182,096
DISTRIBUTION COST 20 (4,160) (6,047)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 21 (39,793) (35,742)
OTHER EXPENSES 22 (13,915) (18,931)
OTHER INCOME 23 13,169 24,141
FINANCE COST 24 (1,063) (1,192)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION AND LEVY 183,127 144,325
LEVY 9 (392) (621)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 182,735 143,704
TAXATION 25 (68,022) (41,329)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 114,713 102,375
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND
DILUTED (RUPEES) 26 8.71 7.77

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

- A e

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 114,713 102,375
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) [/ INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement (loss) / gain arising on staff retirement gratuity 6.3 (642) 120
Related deferred income tax 199 (34)
(443) 86
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year - net of tax (443) 86
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 114,270 102,461

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 2024 2023
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation and levy 183,127 144,325
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depraciation 1l.2 35,496 38,191
Provision for staff retirement gratuity 6.2 29,555 20,939
(Reversal of allowance) [ allowance for expected credit losses 144 (5,683) 7,804
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 23 (716) (474)
Amortization of deferred grant - (155)
Profit on saving account 23 (1,808} {35)
Finance cost 24 1,063 1,192

240,973 211,787
Working capital changes
(Increase) [ decrease in current assets:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools {21,945) {13,505)
Stock in trade - 61,712
Tracle debts 27,950 (76,627)
Loans and advances 1,217 1,633
Short term deposits, prepayment and other receivables (43,511) 1,453

(36,289) (25,334)
Increase [ (decrease) in trade and other payables 31,741 (597,206)
Cash generated from operations 236,425 89,247
Finance cost paid (303} (867}
Staff retirement gratuity paid 6.1 (7,007) (3,638)
Met decrease / (increase) in long term deposits and prepayment 1,209 (1,695}
Income tax and levy paid (76,092) {58,656)
Met cash generated from operating activities 153,960 24,591
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment il (142 ,484) (4,240)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,926 1,157
Profit on saving accounts recaived 1,869 74
Met cash used in investing activities {136,689) (2,969
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term financing I . I | {19,996) |
Met cash used in financing activities - (19,996)
MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17,271 1,626
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 6,569 4,943
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 17 23,840 6,569

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

- ¥ ncad

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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1.1

2.1

a)

b)

<)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Arctic Textile Mills Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (Now Companies Act, 2017) on 27 February 1986 and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on 30 October
1989, Its registered office is situated at 133-134, Regency the Mall, Faisalabad. The Company manufactures and deals in all
bypes of yarn, its conversion and doubling and also deals in trading of fabric / made ups. The manufacturing facility of the
Company is situated at 35 Kilometers, Main Sheikhupura Road, Mouza Johal, Tehsil Jaranwala, District Faisalabad.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. Further,
accounting policies related to material class of accounts does not necessarily means it is material, These policies have been
consistently applied to all vears presented, except for the change in accounting policy of taxation and levy made in accordance
with "Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
through circular 772024, The change has been explained in Note 2.4 to these financial statements.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (TASE) as notified
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the respective
accounting policies,

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards reguires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judament in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. Estimates and judaments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in
application of accounting policies are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

The estimates for revalued amounts of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on valuation performed by
external professional valuer and recommendation of technical teams of the Company. The said recommendations also include
estimates with respect to residual values and depreciable lives. Further, the Company reviews the value of the assets for possible
impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective
items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.
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d)

e)

Inventories

Met realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices less estimated expenditure to
make sales. Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions and historical experience. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions.

Income tax and levy

In making the estimates for income tax and levy currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the
current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. Instances where the Company's
view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that
its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Staff retirement gratuity

The actuarial valuation of staff retirement gratuity requires the use of certain assumptions related to future periods, including
increase in future salary and the rate used to discount future cash flows to present value.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judament. It Is based on the lifetime
expected credit loss, based on the Company's experience of actual credit loss in past years.

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods and services

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods and services to customers, the key performance obligation of the
Company is considered to be the point of delivery of the goods and services to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time
that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Provisions

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations,
technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognized
provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an
asset.

Contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on the judgment and the
advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision 1s made. The actual outcome
of thase litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the statzment of
financial position date.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and are relevant to
the Company

Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 July 2023:

= Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IFRS Practice Statement 2 "Making Materiality Judgement’ -
Disclosure of Accounting Policies;

« Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes” - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction;

+ Amendments to IAS & "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors * - Change in definition of *Accounting
Estimate’;

+ Amendments to [AS 12 'Income Taxes’ - International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules

The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in
prior period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to
the Company

There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2023 but
are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial statements and are therefore
not detailed in these financial statements.
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a)

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant to the Company

Following amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company's accounting perinds
beginning on or after 01 July 2024 or later periods:

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’) effective for
the annual pericd beginning on or after 01 January 2024, These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify
when a liability is classified as current, The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by
requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with [AS 8
*‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”,

On 31 October 2022, the [ASBE issued "MNon-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) to clarify how conditions
with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the classification of a liability. The
amendments are effective for reporting perieds beginning on or after 01 January 2024,

On 22 Septernber 2022, the IASB issued 'Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)" with amendments
that clarify how a seller-lessee subseguently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the reguirements in IFRS 15
to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments are effective for annual perinds beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

Suppliers Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 'Statements of Cash Flows' and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments:
Disclosures'), The amendments add disclosure requirements, and ‘signposts’ within existing disclosure requirements, that ask
entities to provide qualitative and guantitative information about supplier finance arrangements. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting period beginning on or after 01 January 2024,

Classification and Measurements of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and IFRS
9 'Financial Instruments”) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2026. These amendments address
matters identified during the post - implementation review of the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9,

Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to TAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'). The amendments contain
guidance to specify when a currency is exchangeable and how to determine the exchange rate when it Is not. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 Januarny 2025.

IFRS 18 "Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements” (effective Tor annual periods beginning on or after 01 January
2027) with a focus on updates to the statement of profit or loss. The objective of IFRS 18 is to set out requirements for the
presentation and disclosure of information in general purpose financial statements to help ensure they provide relevant
information that faithfully represents an entity's assets, liabilities, eguity, income and expenses. The key concepts introduced in
IFRS 18 relate to: the structure of the statement of profit or loss; required disclosures in the financial statements for certain
profit or loss performance measures that are reported outside an entity's financial statements (that is, management-defined
performance measures); and enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial
statements and notes in general. IFRS 18 will replace TAS 1; many of the other existing principles in IAS 1 are retained, with
limited changes. IFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in the financial statements, but it might
change what an entity reports as its ‘operating profit or loss’,

The above amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the financial statements.,

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and not
considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.
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2.2 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
2.3 Staff retirement gratuity

The Company operates defined benefit plan - unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme, calculated from the date of their joining with the Comparny.
The Company's obligation under the scheme Is determined through actuarial valuation carried under Projected Unit Credit
Actuarial Cost Method. Actuarial valuation is conducted by an independent actuary. The obligation at the date of statement of
financial position is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows. All contributions are charged to
statement of profit or loss for the year.

Actuarial gains and losses (remeasurement gains [ losses) on staff retirement gratuity are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income.

2.4 Taxation and levy
Change in accounting policy

Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit
for the year, It enacted. Final taxes levied under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and any excess over the amount designated as
provision for current tax are charged as levy in statement of profit or loss. The charge for current tax and levy also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax and levy made in previous years arising from assessments framed
during the year for such years. Previously, component represanting levy was included In provision fior current tax and was not
separately charged in statermnent of profit or loss. This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively in accordance
with the provisions of IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' and resulted in following
reclassification of corresponding figures:

| Reclassified from | Reclassified to | RUPEES IN THOUSAND
Statement of profit or loss:
Taxation Lewy 621
Statement of financial position:
Advance income tax Prepaid levy 621
Provision for taxation Levy payable 621

Had there been no change in the above referred accounting policy, amount of Rupees 0.392 million of levy, prepaid levy and levy
payable would have been presented as taxation expense, advance income tax and provision for taxation respectively in these
financial statements, Further, this change in accounting policy has no impact on earnings per share of the Company.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for wusing the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding @x bases used in the computation
of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on 2 rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred t2x Is charged or credited in the statement of
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

a)

b)

c)

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

All operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss, except those
subject to revaluation which are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss,
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any recognized impairment loss. It consists of expenditure incurred and advances
made in respect of operating fixed assets in the course of their construction and installation. These are transferred to operating
fixed assets as and when these are available for use, Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost
pertaining to the construction [ erection period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
warking condition,

Increases in the carmying amounts arising on revaluation are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity, To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in the
statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss, Decreases that reverse previous
increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss and depreciation
based on the asset's original cost, net of deferred income tax, is reclassified from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment to accumulated loss,

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount,

Subsequent costs are included In the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, anly when It is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the itern will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period in
which these are incurred,

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method so
as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 11, The
Company charges its depreciation on additions from the date when the asset is available for use and on deletions up to the date
when the asset s de-recognized. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each financial year-
end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An itern of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expacted from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is de-recognized.

Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit, are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value signifies the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of purchase and the estimated costs necessary
to make a sale, Cost is determined as follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered cbsolete are
carried at nil value, In transit stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at invoice value plus other charges paid thereon,
Stock in trade

Cost of finished goods and stock in transit is determined with invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which asset's
carrying amount exceeds [ts recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and value [n use. Reversals of the Impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if impairment losses had not been
recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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a)

b)

i)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term
highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible Into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in values,

Financial Instruments

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost. The classification depends on the Company's business model for
managing the financial assets and the cantractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. Subsegquent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. Financial
assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets s included in other income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in
other income [ (other expenses).

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is also incduded in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortized cost, The
Company measures loss allowances at an amount egual to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-
month ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk (l.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that Is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a
reasonable period of time, Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of
a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing
and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expacts no significant
recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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i)

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit-impaired. A financial
asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- @ breach of contract such as a default;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise; or
= it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

a) Financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control over the transferred asset, Any interest in such de-recognized financial asset that is created or retained
by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability,

b) Financial liabilities

iv)

2.10

211

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

216

The Company de-recognizes a financial liability {or a part of financial ability) from its statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a
legal enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the
liabilities simultaneoushy.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the

proceads and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if any.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

Other receivables are recognized at amartized cost, less any allowance for expected credit loses.

Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long term financing are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective
qualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long term financing. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend and other appropriations are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initally recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction cost and
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and translation

Iterns included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
ervironment in which the Company operates (the functional curmrency). The financial staterments are presented in Pak Rupees,
which is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are charged or credited to statement of profit or loss.
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0

i)

i)

2.18

219

2.20

2.21

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Fevenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is
generally at the time of delivery.

Conversion and doubling services

The Company provides conversion and doubling services to local customers. These services are sold separately and the
Company's contract with the customer for services constitute a single performance obligation.

Revenue from services is recognized at the point in time, generally at the time of dispatch. There are no terms giving rise to
variable consideration under the Company's contracts with its customers.

Interest

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate,
which Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other revenue

Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established,

Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the
customer pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment
PUrposes.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is

recognized when the payment is received, Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company accomplishes its
performance obligations under the contract.

Earnings per share

The Company presents Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the

year.
Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when there is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whelly within the control of the
Company. Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization become certain.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will onby
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whaolly within the control of the
Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises fram past events but it Is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with settlement reliability.

Government grants

Grants from the Government are recognized at their fair value when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that these are intended to compensate,



ARCTIC TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED A Annual Report 2024

2024 2023
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

3. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

3.1 This represents 13 174 800 (2023: 13 174 800) ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid up in cash. 4 546 500 ordinary
shares (2023: 4 546 500) of the Company are held by Beacon Impex (Private) Limited - an associate.

3.2 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Moreover holders of these shares are entitled to
one vaote per share at general meetings of the Company.

4. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET

OF DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Balance as on 01 July 173,500 190,208

Less:

Surplus transferred to accumulated loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment -

net of deferred income tax - (303)

Adjustment of deferred income tax liability due to remeasurement at year end (4,733) (B40)

Transferred to accumulated loss In respect of incremental depreciation charged during

the year - net of deferred income tax (13,493) (15,565)
(18,226) (16,708)

Balance as on 30 June 155,274 173,500

4.1 Revaluation of property, plant and eguipment of the Company was carried out on 31 December 2021 by an independent valuer,
Messrs Zafar Igbal and Company according to the prevailing market prices. Previously revaluations were carmied out by
independent valuers on 31 December 2018, 30 June 2016, 15 June 2011, 17 March 2005, 11 April 2003 and 30 September 1995,

5. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY
Taxable temporary differences on

Accelerated tax depreciation 81,787 76,625

Deductible temporary differences on

Provision for staff retirement gratuity 22,690 14,763

Allowance for expected credit losses G663 2,229

Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) - 3,236
23,353 20,228

Deferred income tax liability 58,434 56,397

5.1 Movement in deferred income tax liability balance is as follows:

Balance as on 01 July 26,397 70,280

Less:

Recognized in statement of profit or loss:

- accelerated tax depreciation 5,162 [6,742)

- staff retirement gratuity (7,927} {4,915)

- deferred income - Government grant - 44

- allowance for expected credit losses 1,566 (2,224)

= provision for GIDC 3,236 {46)

2,037 (13,883)
Deferred income tax liability 58,434 56,397
5.1.1 Charged to the statement of profit or loss:

MNet movement of temporary differences (Note 5.1) 2,037 (13,883)

- on remeasurement of staff retirement gratuity 199 (34)

Charged to the statement of profit or loss (Note 25) 2,236 {13,917}
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2024 2023
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
6. STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY
The latest actuarial valuation of the staff retirement gratuity was conducted on 30 June 2024 using the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost
Method.
6.1 Movement in the present value of staff retirement gratuity
Balance at the baginning of the year 51,793 35,039
Add:
Prowision for the year (Nate 6.2) 29,555 20,939
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income (Note 6.3) 642 (120)
Liability transferred from other company - 2]
81,990 56,522
Lass:
Payments made during the year (7,077 (3,638)
Increase in current liability - net (1,720) (1,091)
{8,797} {4,729
Balance at the end of the year 73,193 51,793
6.2 Provision for the year
Current service cost 21,853 16,610
Inkerest cost 7,702 4,329
29,555 20,935
6.2.1 Provision for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales (Maote 19) 26,229 18,618
Distribution cost (Mote 20) 370 227
Administrative expensas (Mote 21) 2,956 2,054
29,555 20,939
6.3 Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain} / loss from changes in financial assumptions (366) 523
Experience adjustments 1,008 (643)
542 (120)
6.4 Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June is given below:
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 01 July 51,793 35,039
Current service cost 21,853 16,610
Inkerest cost 7,702 4,329
Liability transferred from other company - 664
Banefits paid during the year (2077 [3,638)
Benefits due but not yet paid {1,720) (1,091)
Experience adjustmeants 1,008 (643}
Actuarial (gain} / less from changes in financial assumptions (366) 523
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 Juna 73,193 51,793
6.5 Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate for interest cost in profit or loss charge 16.25% 13.25%
Discount rate for year end obligation 14.75% 16.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary (per annum}) 13.75%% 15,255
Average duration of the benefit (years) 6 ]
Martality rates SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05
sob back 1 year et back 1 year
Withdrawal rate Age based Age based
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60
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6.5.1 Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience in Pakistan,
6.6 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

The caloulation of staff retirement gratuity is sensitive to assumptions given in Note 6.5, The related sensitivity is as follows:

2024 2023
Discount rate 1.00%, 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (4,038) (2,747)
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 4,561 3,098
Future salary increase 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thausand) 4 775 3,250
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (4,305) (2,935)

The sensitivity analysis of the above sensitivities are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined
benefit plan to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit plan caloulated with the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reparting period) has been applied.

6.7 Projected benefit payments from plan

Follewings are the expected distribution and timing of benefit payments at year end:

2024 2023
Year(s) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
2024 - 13,528
2025 17,245 14,051
2026 17,981 12,786
2027 to 2033 126,650 111,853
2034 and onwards 1,463,176 1,481,189

6.8 The estimated expenses to be charged to the statement of profit or boss for the year ending on 30 June 2025 are Rupees 36.111 millicn.
6.9 Risks associated with the scheme
Final salary risk (linked to inflation risk)

Thie risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final
salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increasas,

Demographic risks

= Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed maortality, This effect is more pronounced in
schemes whera the age and service distribution is on the higher sida.

= Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the
withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.
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7. LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSIT

Annual Report 2024

This deposit is interest free and is being utilized for the purpose of business in accordance with the terms of written agreement with Beacon
Impex (Private) Limited - associate and repayable on complation of cantract period. The falr value adjustment In accordance with the

requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' arising in respect of this deposit is not considered material and hence not recognized.

2024 2023

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Craditors 70,468 91,267
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) payable (Mote 8.1) 11,348 11,348
Accrued liabllities (Note B,2) 167,525 125,677
Income tax deducted at source 8,167 202
Sales tax payable 10,904 13,346
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 8.3) 12,057 8,757
Workers' welfare fund (Mote 8.4) 13,171 9,024
293 640 259 621

8.1 This represents amount payable on acoount of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) that was levied through GIDC Act, 2015, On 13
August 2020, Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan upheld the GIDC Ack, 2015 to be constitutional and intra vires. In connection with this
decision, the Company filed a writ petition in Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore on 14 September 2020 against the charge of GIDC at the
rate of captive power consumer instead of industrial consumer. However the outeome of the writ petition is pending.

8.2 These include gratuity payable due but not pald to emplovees amounting to Rupees 1,720 milllon {(2023: Rupees 1,091 million).
B.3 Workers' profit participation fund

Balance as on 01 July 8,757 6,971
Add: Provision for the year {Mote 22) 9,768 7,248
Add: Intersst for the year (Nate 24) 558 516
19,083 14,735
Less: Payments made during the year 7026 5,978
Balance as on 30 June 12,057 8,757
84 Workers' welfare fund
Balance as on 01 July 9,024 5,145
Add: Provision for the year (Note 22) 4,147 3,879
Balance as on 30 June 13,171 9,024
9. PROVISION FOR TAXATION AMD LEVY PAYABLE - NET
Provision for taxation - net
Provision for taxation 65,927 54,801
Less: Advance income tax (62,021) (40,981}
3,906 13,820
Levy payable - net
Lewvy payable 392 621
Less: Prepaid levy (392} (621}
3,906 13,820

10. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
a) Contingencies
1) Guarantess of Rupees 200 million (2023: Rupees 20 million) are given by the Bank of the Company to Sul Northern Gas Pipelines Limited
{SNGPL) against gas connections.,

i} The Company filed writ petitions in Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore on 17 August 2023 and 16 August 2024, subseguent to reporting
date, against the recovery of demands having collective amount of Rupees 14.883 million on increased rate of minimum wages raised by
Employess Old Age Benefits Institution (EQBL). Keeping in view of the opinlon of the legal counsel of the Company, the related provision is
not made in these financial statements as there are strong grounds of favorable ocutcome of the petitions.

b) Commitments
There was no commitment as at 30 June 2024 (2023: Rupees Nil).



Annual Report 2024

ARCTIC TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

ot o iE Fijs 0 ot Ot 114 ot
[T TEL Z9E LHEDE BO0EE LIS 56 18T [ SED'EAT TOEES
(9ca'k1a) (£06'T) (E£e'c) [ebe'0Z) (9z6'as) (ooa'sT) (pEE'z) (011! (EEZ'E5k) (DEE'6E) -
9RE'ELTL 1] % 5119 FEE'TE SEE'TR £HO'ST DEE'E 182t ST ae'TEt OEES
005 26k IET 79E £8E'01 EO0'EE LS I56 TET THEET QEC'ENT TOREE
[5ab'se) {s) ¥} EBLD {10e'2) 4 4] 5 (g1l (e1'a1) 1 88
(OLE'E) - - - O1E'E) - - - - -
7 | | | | | -0 | | | |
(LTS - : - (ERES) - - - - -
P THT ST SR BIE'ET BOZ'S LES PII SET0ZT SETT .
TREPEE £5T Bz 682'TI QEE'TZ L56'F 06k 68 £5E'68T SATEIT Tab'Es
TR PEE 5T ¥z [FEAT CERTZ TR [T [ CCEGET CATTIL TObEL
4 {1 (aga‘t) (905} (rz'st) [52¢°25) (sze’1z} (E2e'c) [T (S0 Wik} [ga5 5E) -
GETLLE CET'Z 0E'S b5 '0E 1256 TOT'97 CIe'E LETT GED'PED TEL'DST TOR'ES
TR PEE I5T ¥aT TEATTL DEETT L6 OB+ ) £56 681 8] TOkES
(16135} {az) (62) [{T=g (gEx'z) {bE2'T) {ps) (g fpat'1e) [TLE'TT) -
[{a] - - - - - - [Ezed - -
N | | | | | | | N E
[Z1T°pL) - - : - - - : [ZLLFLD - -
EEDT - - RE0T
OTEEEE [+ £6T £p5'TT EEE'RT Tl S Fra QERTIT 05ETT TOR'ES
OIEETk SHT AT £F5 21 BLE b 12179 +bS £L G5E 11T D5LELT TIr'is
(51972550 (01a) (2:5'5} (S00'RT) (Z262'35) [T66°6TH {E=Rar (0R0TH (S6Z'92t} (565"a2) -
575085 SET'E 0E's 6b5'0E TZ5'6L T81'9T £TE'E LET'T 157359 ShE'DHFT Tar'Es
ANVSNOHL NI S33did
saouendde
— pue Jusuwnbe SUOIE||EYSU| j—— 5 pr— uslidinbe | | soanxy pue | | Adsu|yxew Pusy puE]
Juawdinba Aapey ENF g L= e aanguung puE Juegy .E_ a. m:.__,____.i Ployamuy
N9

(3] uepEReIdep Jo ages [enuuy

SNEA H00d 13N

UDNEDRICAD DEQENLUNIO
IR pRnjEa [ s00

FEOT 2ung OE 3

anEs qoag w@u fusoo
afieys usgepsasdag

UDREIRICAE PEQENLNIY
B0
R |

SUINDRY
arges yoog Jou Gauad)

0T BuRE OF Popua sEa),

e 00 13N

UDOERCEAR PRgE LUy
WINOILLE PENjEAE [ 1600

ETOT BURL OF 1V

angEs yoog @ fusoy
BEIPYY WbKe|3aMa

UONEIRIOI [ DALMY
NG PO [ 1507
sEsndsig

SUIRPRY
args yood Jou Guuad)

£20Z BUAE OE POPUS JEB)

BN HO0g 1A

T TCRRT AT TE TR )
UNOWE PaNErad [ 1500

TEOT aung OE 1

LNAWLINGG ONY LNV ALHIJOBA

T

T



ARCTIC TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Annual Report 2024

11.1  Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated depreciation and book value of the revalued assets would have been

as follows:

Freshold land

Buildings on freehold land
Plant and machinery
Power generation house

2024
2023

11.2  Depreciation charged during the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales (Note 19)
Administrative expenses (Mote 21)

Cost Accumulated MNet book
depreciation value
------- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)-------
21,019 - 21,019
64,468 35,908 28,560
381,644 187,106 194,538
80,832 52,544 28,288
547,963 275,558 272,405
412,278 262,793 149 485
2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
33,951 36,895
1,545 1,296
35,496 38,191

11.3 Particulars of immovable properties (i.e. land and buildings) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Covered area

Particulars Location Area of land of buildings
Kanals Sq. ft.
Manufacturing facility 35 Kilometers, Main Sheikhupura Road, Mouza lohal, 42.77 156 400

Faisalabad

11.4 Forced sales value of revalued property, plant and equipment as per last revaluation carried out on 31 December 2021 was

Rupees 333.552 million,

12, LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT
Security deposits
Prepayment

Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 16)

13. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores
Spare parts
Loose tools

14. TRADE DEBTS
Considered good:

Uinsecurned
Related party (Note 14.2)

Others

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 14.4)

11,099 12,399
323 103
11,422 12,502
232 103
11,190 12,399
32,191 19,614
47,209 37,771
321 191
79,721 57,776
27,458 47,753
41,166 48,821
68,624 96,574
2,138 7,821
66,486 88,753
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2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

14.1  Trade debts in respect of foreign and local jurisdictions is given under:

Egypt . 29,155
Pakistan 6,486 59,584
665,486 88,753

14.2  This represents amount due from Beacon Impex (Private) Limited, an associate. The receivable balance is neither past due
nor impaired. The maximum aggregate amount receivable from the related party at the end of any month during the year
was Rupess 179.005 million (2023: Rupees 47.753 million)

14.3 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the time of delivery, while payment Is generally due within 7 to 30 days
from delivery in case of local sales and 30 to 60 days from the date of shipment in case of export sales.

14.4 Allowance for expected credit losses:

Balance as at 01 July 7.821 17

Add: Recognized during the year - 7,804
7821 7,821

Less: Recoverad during the year (Note 23) (5,683) -

Balance as at 30 June 2,138 7,821

15. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:

Employees - interest free;

against salary (Mote 15.1) 2,416 2,172

against expenses 25 510

Advances to suppliers a1l 1,587
3,052 4,269

15.1  These represent interest free loans given to employees for meeting their personal expenditure and are secured against
balances to the credit of employees in the staff retirement gratuity. These are recoverable in equal monthly installments,

16. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good:

Security deposits 10,284 51

Current portion of long term deposits and prepayment (Note 12} 232 103

Sales tax refundable 33,149 -
43,665 154

17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks:

on current accounts (Mote 17.1) 12,200 5,064

on saving account (Note 17.2) 11,513 10
23,713 5,074

Cash in hand 127 1,495
23,840 6,269

17,1 These include Rupees 11.235 million (2023: Rupees Nil) lying in a current account under lien of The Bank of Punjab against
guarantee given on behalf of the Company.

17.2 Rate of profit on saving account was 20.50% (2023 12.25% to 19.50%) per annum.
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2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
i8. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Export sales of fabric - 89,225
Conversion and doubling income 2,135,624 1,746,098
Less: Sales tax (325,773) {258,466)
1,809,851 1,487,632
Export rebate - 836
1,809,851 1,577,693

18.1 The Company has recognized revenue of Rupees Mil (2023: Rupees 14.944 million) from amount included in contract

liabilities at the year end.
18.2 The Company’s revenue from external customers by geographical locations is disaggregated as follows:

Egypt - 59,140
Ethiopia - 580
Sri Lanka - 30,341
Pakistan 1,809,851 1,487,632
1,809,851 1,577,603
18,3  Revenue is recognized at point in time as per the terms and conditions of underlying contracts with customers.
19. COST OF SALES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 659,529 555,663
Staff retirement benefit (Note 6.2.1) 26,229 18,618
Cost of finished goods sold - 76,828
Fuel and power 510,412 386,751
Telephone 394 420
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 98,202 92,870
Packaging materials and other charges 89,785 72,531
Repair and maintenance 27917 26,188
Travelling and conveyance 15,481 12,470
Transportation and handling 1,623 2,558
Rent, rates and taxes (Mote 19.1) 96,000 92,400
Other factory overheads 16,219 15,778
Insurance 5,220 5,627
Depreciation (Note 11.2) 33,951 36,895
1,580,962 1,395,597
19.1  These represent rent in respect of short term leases.
20. DISTRIBUTION COST
Salaries and other benefits 3,480 3,120
Staff retirement benefit (Mote 6.2.1) 370 227
Commission to selling agents - 196
Outward freight and handling 212 1,915
Clearing and forwarding - 417
Export development surcharge 98 172
4,160 6,047
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2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
21. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and other benefits 19,184 17,069
staff retirement benefit (Mote 6.2.1) 2,956 2,094
Travelling and conveyance 101 a7
Advertisement, printing and stationery 7583 697
Electricity, sui gas and water 2,074 1,385
Postage and telephone 527 526
Rent, rates and taxes (Mote 21.1) 1,440 1,380
Repair and maintenance 3,679 4 544
Auditor's remuneration (Mote 21.2) 1,600 1,250
Legal and professional 2,150 1,911
Fee, subscription and periodicals 1,910 1,327
Entertainment 543 318
Others 1,331 1,848
Depreciation (Mote 11.2) 1,545 1,296
39,753 35,742
21.1  These represent rent in respect of short term leases,
21.2  Auditor's remuneration
Audit fee 1,000 200
Other certifications including half vearly review &0 350
1,600 1,250
22, OTHER EXPENSES
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 8.3) 9,768 7,248
Workers' welfare fund (Note §.4) 4,147 3,879
Allowance for expected credit losses - 7,804
13,915 18,931
23. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts 1,869 35
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses (Note 14.4) 5,683 -
Exchange gain - net 2,231 11,902
9,783 11,937
Income from non - financial assets
Sale of scrap 2,670 11,575
Gain on sale of property, plant and eguipment 716 474
Amortization of deferred income - Government grant - 155
3,386 12,204
13,169 24,141
24, FINANCE COST
Mark-up on long term financing - 79
Interest on workers' profit participation fund (Mote 8.3) 558 516
Amortization of deferred income - Government grant - 155
Unwinding of discount on GIDC payable - 4
Bank charges and commission 505 438
1,063 1,192




ARCTIC TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED A Annual Report 2024

a5,

25.1
25.2

26.

27.

2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
TAXATION
Current (Note 25.1) 64,888 53,746
Prior year adjustment 898 1,500
Deferred (Mote 5.1.1) 2,236 (13,917)
68,022 41,329

Provision for current tax represents corporate tax and super tax calculated as per Section 4C of Income Tax Ordinance,

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

Accounting profit before taxation 182,735 143,704
Tax on profit @ 29% (2023: 29%,) 52,993 41,674
Tax effect of super tax 4212 1,812
Tax effect of prior year adjustment 898 1,500
Tax effect arising as a consequence of recognition of deferred income tax 2,236 (13,917)
Others 7,683 10,260
68,022 41,329

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share which is based on:

2024 2023
Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousand) 114,713 102,375
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {Mumbers) 13 174 800 13 174 800
Earnings per share (Rupees) 8.71 777

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

LONG TERM
FINANCING
(RUPEES IN
THOUSAND)
Balance as at 01 July 2023 -
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 30 June 2024 -
Balance as at 01 July 2022 19,841
Repayment of financing (19,995)
Amortization of deferred grant-net 155

Balance as at 30 June 2023
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28. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration including all benefits and perquisites to the Chief
Executive Officer, directors and executives of the Company are given below:

2024 2023
DESCRIPTION Exgz:::lirue Director | Executives Exzrl::‘:netifue Director Executives
Officer Officer
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Managerial remunaration 833 1,143 13,472 712 952 8,172
Allowances
House rent 333 457 5,389 320 429 3,269
Others 83 114 7,323 36 48 4,815

1,249 1,714 26,184 1,068 1,429 16,260
MNumber of persons 1 1 f 1 1 3

28.1 The executives are provided with fuel reimbursement, free residence and mobile phone expenses reimbursement.

28.2 Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for meeting fee to 7 (2023: 7} directors, including Chief Executive Officer
of the Company was Rupees 1.094 million (2023: Rupees 0.556 million).

28.3 Apart from meeting fee mentioned in Mote 28.2, no remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.

2024 2023
29. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employeas as at 30 June 952 982
Average number of employees during the year 969 938

30. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of the associate and key management personnel. The Company In the normal course of business
carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

2024 2023

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Transactions with associate
Purchase of goods and other shared services 140,177 196,479
Revenue from conversion and doubling of yarn 1,710,182 1,244,694
Receipt of long term security deposit - 30,000
Other related parties
Sale of vehicles to executives 3,926 -

30.1 Beacon Impex (Private) Limited (BIPL) is the associate of the Company holding 34.5091% shareholding in the Company.
30.2 Detail of compensation to key management personnel is disclosed in Note 28,
31. ENTITY - WIDE INFORMATION

The Company constitutes of a single reportable segment. The Company does not hold non-current assets In any foreign country,
There is one major customer (2023: one major customer) of the Company representing revenue of Rupees 1,710,182 million
(2023: Rupees 1,244,694 million).

32.  PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Plant capacity and actual production is not given because the Company is currently performing yam processing arrangements for
third parties with no involvement of Company's own raw material purchases.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

33.1 Financial risk factors
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.
Risk management [s carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, use of non-derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity.

{a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flovys of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that
exist due to transactions in foreign currencies,

The Company was exposed to currency rlsk arising primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD). The Comparny's
exposure to currency risk was as follows:

2024 2023
Trade debts - USD - 101,741
Following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
Rupees per US Dollar
Average rate - 200,18
Reporting date rate - 2B6.60

Sensitivity analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened [ strengthensd by 5% against the USD with all other variables
hald constant, the impact on profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees NIl (2023: Rupees 1.341 million) higher
[ lower mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments.

(ii) Other price risk
Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused

by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded
in the market. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk.

(iil) Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates,

The Company's interest rate risk arises from bank balance in saving account. Financial instruments at variable rates expose
the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate
risk.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Floating rate instruments
Financial assets
Bank balance in saving account 11,513 10

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rate at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for
the year would have been Rupees 0.074 million (2023: Rupees Nil) higher [ lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest
income on floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of financial instruments outstanding
at reporting dates were outstanding for the whole year.
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(b} Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation, The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was as follows:

2024 2023

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Depasits 21,383 12,450
Trade dabits 66,486 88,753
Loans and advances 2416 2,172
Bank balances 23,713 5,074
113,098 108,449

The cradit guality af financial assats that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to extarnal credit ratings (if availabla) or
to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating 2024 | 2023
Short Term || Long term || Agency (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Banks
Habily Metropolitan Bank Limited A+ MM PACRA 814 3,763
The Bank of Purjab A+ AAH PACRA 22,794 876
MCE Bank Limited A+ A PACRA 105 435
23,713 E,074

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties, management does not expect non-perfarmance by these
counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the oredit risk is minimal.

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking Into account the customer's financlal
position, past experienca and other factors, Sales contracts and credit terms are approved by the senior management, The management has set a
maximum credit period limit for each type of customers in order to reduce the oredit risk.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach ta measure expected credit lasses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance Tar all trade
debts. Management uses actual historical oredit loss experience, credit risk charactenstics and past days due, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment to determine expected credit loss allowance.

The Company's exposure to credit risk related to trade debts due from ather than the related party is as follows:

GROSS AMOUNT EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES
2024 | 2023 2024 | 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND) {RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Mot past dus 5,219 5,372 - -
Upto 1 manth 6,910 1,926 - -
1 to & months 25,582 3,899 - -
& months to 1 year 1,317 29,803 - -
More than 1 year 2,138 7,821 2,138 7,821
41,166 48,821 2,138 7,821

The management believes that all unimpaired amounts are collectable in full, based on historlcal payment behaviour and extensive analysis of
consumer credit risk,

(c} Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty In meeting obligations assoclated with financial labilities that are settled by delvering
cash or ather financial asset.
The Company's approach to manage liquidity risk is by maintaining sufficient cash. There is no unavailed credit facility available to the Company.
However as ab 30 June 2024, the Company had Rupeas 23840 million (2023; Rupess 6,569 million) cash and bank balances, Management believes
that currently the liguidity risk to be low. The contractual maturities of financial liabilities are disclosed in the table depicting undiscounted cash
flows:
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2024:

oring | Conrpcu] € month o[ 12 s | are e
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Long term security deposit 30,000 30,000 - - 30,000
Trade and ather payables 237,993 237,993 237 593 - -
267,993 267,993 237,993 - 30,000
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33.2

33.3

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2023:

Mon-derivative financial liabilities:
Lang term security deposit

Trade and other payables

Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Depasits

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Cash and bank balances

Annual Report 2024

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Long term security deposit
Trade and cther payables

Carrying Contractual | |6 months or Maore than
amount cazsh flows lags 6-12 months 1 yaar
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND) ---===s==s===ssmmmmmmannan
30,000 30,000 - - 30,000
216,944 216,544 216,944 - -
246,944 246,944 216,944 - 30,000
2024 2023
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
At amortized cost
21,383 12,450
65,486 88,753
2,416 2,172
23,840 3,569
114,125 105,944
30,000 30,000
237,993 216,944
267,993 246,944

Reconciliation of financial assets and financial liabilities to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as

2024 2023

Total as per Total as per
Financial Other than statement of | Financial u;::;:‘;n statement of

assets financial assets financial assets s financial

position ass position

==== RUPEES IN THOUSAND -=--=-=-==ssscmscmmememmnm e e e
Assets as per statement of financial position
Long term depasits and prepayment 11,094 a1 11,190 12,3949 - 12,399
Trade debts 66,485 - 66,486 88,753 - 88,753
Loans and advances 2,416 636 3,052 2,172 2,097 4,269
Short term deposits, prepayment and
other receivables 10,284 33,381 43,665 51 103 154
Cash and bank balances 23,840 - 23,840 6,564 - 6,569
114,125 34,108 148,233 109,944 2,200 112,144
2024 2023
Total as per Total as per
Financial POthas tl_-uan statement of | Financial e I:I:mn statement of
financial financial .
liabilities liabiliti financial liabilities liabiliti financial
iabilities position iabilities position
RUPEES IN THOUSAND
Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Long term security deposit 30,000 - 30,000 30,000 - 30,000
Trade and other payables 237,953 55,647 293,640 216,944 42,677 259,621
267,993 55,647 323,690 246,944 42 677 289,621
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35.
(i}

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Ag an the reporting date, recognized financial instrumants are not subject to offsetting as thera are no enforceable mastar netting arangemeants
and similar agreements.

Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue a3 a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring retum on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes In economic
canditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares or sell assets to reducs debt,

RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Certain finandial assets and financial liabilities are not measurad at fair value I the carrying amounts are a reascnable approximation of fair value,
Due to shart term nature, carmying amounts of certaln financlal assets and financial labilities are considerad to be the same ag their fale value, For
the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also net significantly different to their carrying amownts, Judgements and estimatas
are made [n determining the falr values of the financlal instruments that are recognized and measured at falr value In these financlal statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company dassifies its financial instruments into
following three levels, However, as at the reporting date, the Company has no such type of financial instrumenits which are required to be groupad
inta thase levals. These levels are explained as under;

Level 1: Quated prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities,

Lenrel 2: The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, owver-the-counter dervatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximize the use of abservable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (l.e. unobservable inputs).
RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Fair valua hierarchy

Judgements and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are recognized and measured at fair value in
the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its
nan-financial agsets into the following three lavels,

[ Levell | Level2 | Lewel3 | Total |
—————————————————— RUPEES IN THOUSAND ----—------—---—-
At 30 June 2024
Fresshold land = 53,462 - 53,462
Buildings on freehald land - 103,036 - 103,036
Plant and machinery - 200,942 - 290,942
Power generation house - 33,009 - 33,009
Total non-financial assets - 480,449 - 480,449
[ Lewvel1 | Level2 | Level3 | Total |
--------------------- RUPEES IN THOUSAND ======sscezaeans=-
At 30 June 2023
Freehold land - 53,462 - 53,462
Buildings on freehaold land - 112,165 - 112,165
Plant and machinery - 189,953 - 189,953
Power generation house - 21,856 - 21,896
Total non-financial assets = 377476 - 377,476

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

There were no transfiers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year, Further, there was no transfer in and out of

lewel 3 measurements.
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(i) Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 fair values
The Comparny obiains independent valuations for its freehald land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery and power generation house
(classified as property, plant and equipment) after significant intervals. The management updates the assessment of the falr value of freehold
land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery and power generation house taking into account the most recent independent valuations.
The management determines the property's value within a range of reasonable falr value estimates. The best evidence of falr value of freehold
land is current prices in an active market for similar lands. The best evidence of fair value of buildings is to caloulate fair depreciated markat value
by applying an appropriate annual rate of depreciation on the new construction [ replacement value of the same building. The best evidence of fair
wvalue of plant and machinery and power generation house is to calculate fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of
depreciation on the value of new plant and machinery and power generation house of the same specifications.
Valuation processes
The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of freebold land, buildings on freehold land, plant,
machinery and power generation house after significant intervals.
Changes In fair values are analyzed at each reporting date during discussion between the management of the Company and the valuer. As part of
this discussion the team presents a report that explains the reason for the fair value movements,
36. DISCLOSURES BY COMPANY LISTED ON ISLAMIC INDEX
2024 2023
Description NOTE
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Revenue earned from shariah compliant business 18 1,800,851 1,577,693
Exchange gain 23 2,231 11,902
Profit earned / interest paid on any conventional loan [ advance:
Mark-up on long berm financing - 79
Profit on saving account with bank 23 1,855 35
There was no dividend on any investment and no loan [/ advance as per Islamic mode, Moreover there was no relationship with any shariah
compliant banks.
37. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 26, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
38. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. Howewver, no significant rearrangements have
been mads except for as given in Note 2.4 and as given below;
PARTICULARS RECLASSIFICATION RUPEES IN
FROM | TO THOUSAND
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess payable Current Partion of non-current liabilities Trade and other payables 11,348
39, GEMNERAL
Figures have besn rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stated.
[ :-E'. 4
3l — anBiCs
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting ("AGM™) of Arctic Textile Mills Limited, ("the
Company™) will be held on Saturday, October 26, 2024 at its Registered Office, 133-134, Regency the Mall,
Faisalabad at 11:00 A.M. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.
2.

To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting ("AGM") held on October 27, 2023.

To receive, consider and approve the annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2024 together with the Auditors Report, Directors Report, & Chairman Review Report.

To appoint Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration. The retiring Auditors, M/S Riaz Ahmad &
Company, Chartered accountants who offered themselves for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4,

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the resolution appearing below:
"Resolved that the Authorized Capital of the Company be increased from Rupees 170 million (Rupees One
Hundred and Seventy Million Only) to Rupees 300 million {(Rupees Three Hundred Million Only), divided into
30,000,000 ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each”.

"Further Resolved that the clause V of the Memorandum and clause 5 of the Articles of Association will be
amended to reflect this increase in Authorized Capital”.

"Further Resolved that the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary are hereby authorized to take
all necessary actions to implement the increase in the Company's authorized share capital and to amend the
relevant clauses of the Memorandum and Articles of Association accordingly.”

OTHER BUSINESS:

5.

To transact any other business with the permission of the chair.

* 7] I
L_:, i'-n_c'ja e
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
COMPANY SECRETARY

Dated: October 04, 2024
Faisalabad.

As required under section 223(6) of the companies Act, 2017 ("the Act") Financial Statements of the Company
has been uploaded on the website of the Company, which can be download from the following link / QR code:

https://www.arctictextile.com/financial-statement.html

NOTES:

1.

The share transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from October 18, 2024 to October 26, 2024 (both
days inclusive), to determine the names of members entitled to attend the meeting. Transfers received in order
at Registered Office of the Company or our Share Registrar, M/S Corp link (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K,
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore by the close of business on 17 October, 2024 will be considered in time.
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2. All members entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint a person/representative as his/her proxy
to attend and vote on his/her behalf. The instrument appointing proxy and Power of Attorney or other authority
under which it is signed or notarially certified copy of the Power of Attorney must be received at Registered
Office of the Company, duly stamped, signed and witnessed not less than 48 hours before the meeting. An
instrument of Proxy applicable for meeting is available on www.arctictextile.com who have deposited their
shares into Central Depository Company of Pakistan ("CDC") will further have to follow the mentioned
guidelines as laid down by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. A proxy must be a member.

3. The shareholders intended to participate in AGM through electronics mean, are hereby requested to get
themselves registered with the Company by providing the required details (Name, CNIC Number, Folio CDC
Account Number, Cell Number & E-Mail ID for their identification) by the end of business on 25 October 2024
through email at info@arctictextile.com. and / or through Mobile / WhatsApp no. 0333-6598588

4, Members are requested to notify changes, if any, in their registered address.

5. Shareholders, being individual whose shares are deposited with Central Depository System (CDS) are requested
to bring their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) / Original Passport along with their Account Number
in CDS for verification. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s Resolution / Power of Attorney with
specimen signatures of the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

6. Members are hereby informed that pursuant to SECP vide SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 and
Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 has provided an option to receive audited financial statements
electronically through email. Hence, member who hold shares in physical form and are interested in receiving
the annual reports electronically in future are required to submit their e-mail addresses and consent for
electronic transmission to the Shares Registrar of the company by filling the form awvailable at company’s
website: www.arctictextile.com, or may contact us through e-mail info@arctictextile.com,

7. As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing company shall be required to replace its
physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by
the SECP, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Act. In this
regard, SECP vide its File No. CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised all the
listed companies to pursue their shareholders who still hold shares in  physical form, requiring
them to convert their shares in book-entry-form. Holding shares in book-entry form has numerous
benefits including secure custody of shares, instantaneous transfer of ownership and no risk of
damaged, lost, forged or duplicate  certificates.  Accordingly, Shareholders  having  physical
shareholding are reguested to convert their shares in book-entry form by opening CDC sub-account with
any of the brokers or Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into script-less

form.
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8. Pursuant to section 242 of the Companies Act. 2017, all listed companies must pay cash dividend through
electronic mode. Physical Share Holders are required to provide immediately their "International Bank Account
Number ("IBAN") containing the title of Account, along with name of Bank, Branch name, and address. In case
share are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form shall be dispatched directly to Shareholder’s broker
J participant / CDC Investor Account Services., The members of the company are required to submit Declaration
for Zakat exemption in terms of Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.

9. Members can also exercise their right of E-Voting subject to the requirements of Section 143-145 of Companies
Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) regulations 2018.

10. In compliance with SECP, the audited financial statements and reports of the Company for the year ended June
30th, 2024, & notice of AGM to be held on October 26, 2024 are being placed on the Company's website:
www,arctictextile.com

11. Pursuant to Section 132(2) & section 134(b) of the Companies Act, 2017, if Company receives consent from
Shareholders holding aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at geographical location to participate in
the meeting through video conference at least 7 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange
video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility please
provide following information and submit to registered office of the Company:

12. | Folio / CDC Name of CNIC Shareholding Total Shares Principal / Joint
Account No Shareholder Shareholder
"I/We of being a member of Arctic Textile Mills Limited, holder of ordinary
Share(s) vide folio no. CDC/Account hereby opt for video conference facility at "
Signature of Member

13. Circulation the Annual Audited Financial Statements to their members through QR enabled
code and weblink

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has allowed listed companies, through its SRO No.
389(1)2023 dated March 21, 2023 to circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements to their members
through QR enabled code and weblink instead of transmitting the Annual Audited Financial Statements
through CD/DVD/USB. The Company shall circulate Annual Audited Financial Statements through email
address in case it has been provided by the members to the Company, and upon demand, supply hard
copies of the Annual Audited Financial to the members free of cost / or download from
https://www.arctictextile.com/financial-statement.html|
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For any query / information, the investors may contact the Company / Share Registrar at the following:

Company'’s Registered Office Share Registrar

133-134, Regency the Mall, Faisalabad. Corplink (Private) Limited
Wings Arcade, 1 K Commercial, Model Town, Lahore

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out all the material facts concerning Special Business under Agenda Item No. 4
be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 26, 2024.

Currently, the Authorized Share Capital of Arctic Textile Mills Limited stands at Rupees 170,000,000, To support
the anticipated growth of the Company, it is deemed necessary to increase the Authorized Share Capital from
Rupees 170,000,000 to Rupees 300,000,000, divided into 30,000,000 ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each.
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FORM 34
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1. Name of the Company Arctic Textile Mills Limited
2. Incorporation number 0014146
3. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30-06-2024
------Shareholdings------
3.1 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
404 1 100 39,300
779 101 500 296,450
206 501 1,000 188,300
179 1,001 5,000 461,466
41 5,001 10,000 288,000
29 10,001 15,000 381,540
9 15,001 20,000 166,900
4 20,001 25,000 89,500
1 25,001 30,000 27,100
4 30,001 35,000 129,300
1 35,001 40,000 39,500
2 55,001 60,000 115,700
4 60,001 &65,000 245,000
1 65,001 70,000 66,062
2 70,001 75,000 146,400
1 80,001 85,000 84,000
1 85,001 50,000 85,482
1 90,001 95,000 91,600
3 95,001 100,000 300,000
1 100,001 105,000 100,500
1 140,001 145,000 144,000
1 190,001 195,000 191,800
1 200,001 205,000 205,000
P 310,001 315,000 620,300
1 465,001 470,000 468,400
i 560,001 565,000 1,124,900
1 595,001 600,000 599,800
1 960,001 965,000 962,000
1 965,001 970,000 970,000
1 4,545,001 4,550,000 4,546,500
1,685 13,174,800
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4. Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 2,022,000 15.3475%
and their spouse and minor children

2 Associated Companies, 4,546,500 34.5091%
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)

3 NIT and ICP 149,300 1.1332%

4 Banks Development 681,200 5.1705%
Financial Institutions, Naon
Banking Financial Institutions.

5 Insurance Companies 26,000 0.1973%
6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 36,200 0.2748%
7 Shareholders holding 10% or more 4,546,500 34.5091%

8 General Public

a. Local 5,457,500 41.4238%
b. Foreign 0 0.0000%

9 Others (to be specified)
Joint Stock Companies 256,100 1.9439%

1
L._'; im AaDory

Ali Mudassar
Company Secretary
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Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2024

Shares
Sr. No. [Name Held Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
1 BEACON IMPEX (PRIVATE) LIMITED 4,546,500 34.51%
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

1 MR. MUHAMMAD ASHRAF 10,000 0.08%
2 MR. ZEESHAN SAEED (CDC) 982,600 7.46%
3 MR. MUHAMMAD IQBAL (CDC) 994,400 7.55%
4 MRS. SAIRA 15,000 0.11%
5 MR. USMAN MAHMOOD 20,000 0.15%

6 MR, QAISER NASIR (Nominee of Beacon Impex) - -

7 MR. MUHAMMAD AMMAN ADIL (Nominee of Beacon Impex) - -
Executives: - -
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 743,400 5.64%
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting interest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 BEACON IMPEX (PRIVATE) LIMITED 4,546,500 34.51%
2 MR. MUHAMMAD IQBAL 994,400 7.55%
3 MR. ZEESHAN SAEED 982,600 7.46%
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Gender pay gap statement under Circular 10 of 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30 June 2024:
(i} Mean Gender Pay Gap: The mean pay for men is 10.64% higher than of women.

(ii) Median Gender Pay Gap: The median pay for men is equal to women.

Muhamad Iqbal
Chief Executive Officer

Date: 26 September, 2024



being a mamber of Arclic Texlile Mills Limited , hereby appaint

of

or failing him./her

of

membens) of the Comparny, as my/our proxy in my/our absance to attend and vote for mefus and on my/our behalf at
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 26, 2024 (Saturday), at 11:00 AM at 133-124,
Regency The Mall, Faisalabad.

as witness may hand this day of 2024 Plee

Signad by the said mamber revEnue

stamp

in presence of

Signature(s) of Membens)

Signature of witness _ ___ _ _ ___ _ ______________

MEITH - o oo i e i e mcmcmcrcmmm e

Falio Ma. Shares held CDC AG. Ma.

Signature of witness _ _ __ __ _ _________________

4

Impertart: This instrument appolrting a proxy, duly completed. mist be recalved at the Regestered Office of the Compary

at 133-134, Regency The Mall, Faisalabad. not later than 48 hours before the time to holding the annuwal general

meating.
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